
 
NIXA CITY COUNCIL 

Tentative Agenda 
January 10, 2022 

7:00 PM 
NIXA CITY HALL 

715 W. MT. VERNON 
 

This meeting will be conducted at 715 W. Mt. Vernon. Individuals may view the meeting live on our 

YouTube channel: https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofNixa   

 

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Visitors (Speaker Card Required; Comments Limited to 5 Minutes): 
 None Scheduled 
  

Presentation: 

   Drew Douglas Strategic Plan Update Community Safety 

 

Ordinances (First Reading and Public Hearing; Comments Limited to 5 Minutes; No 
Council Vote Anticipated): 

Council Bill #2022-011 Amending Chapter 6 of the Nixa City Code by Modifying 
Sections 6-4 and 6-5 so that Violations of Said Sections Apply to Certain Animals 
Within the City Limits Regardless of Where the Animal is Kept 
 

Ordinances (Second Reading and Public Hearing; Comments Limited to 5 Minutes; 
Council Vote Anticipated): 

Council Bill #2021-121 Approving the Preliminary Plat of the Riverton Park 
Subdivision Generally Located along the East 1400 Block of North Road and 
Authorizing Certain City Officials to Take Certain Actions Upon the Filing of A Final 
Plat 

 
Resolutions: (Public Hearing; Comments Limited to 5 Minutes; Council Vote 
Anticipated): 

Resolution #2022-011 Continuing the Authorization of the Beautification Façade 
Grant Issued by Resolution #2021-012 
 
Resolution #2022-012 Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute a Contract with 
the City of Springfield, Missouri to Share in the Costs of Imagery Purchased from 
Pictometry International Corporation 
 
Resolution #2022-013 Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute Certain 
Contract Documents with Vermont Systems for Rec Trac Hosting and Card 
Processing Services 
 

 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofNixa


 
 
Mayor and Council Member Reports: 
 
Closed Executive Session: 

The City Council is anticipated to conduct an executive session pursuant to sections 
610.021(3) & (13) in which the Council will discuss the hiring, firing, discipling, or 
promoting of particular employees and personal information about the employee is to 
be discussed; and individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings or 
records pertaining to the employee are to be discussed. 

 
This executive session, records related thereto, and any votes taken by the Council 
shall be closed pursuant to section 610.021, particularly sections 610.021(3) & (13). 

   
Adjournment: 

The Council shall stand adjourned at the end of the executive session. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Council/ Staff Liaisons 
             Jarad Giddens/Doug Colvin-Public Works       Darlene Graham/Joe Campbell-Police 
             Amy Hoogstraet/Matt Crouse-Park                  Aron Peterson/Garrett Tyson-Planning/Development 

                           Justin Orf/Cindy Robbins-Administration/Court & Drew Douglas-Communications 
                           Shawn Lucas/Jennifer Evans-Finance & Amanda Hunsucker 
 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 
Issue:  COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022-011: AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF NIXA AMENDING CHAPTER 6 OF THE NIXA CITY CODE 
BY MODIFYING SECTIONS 6-4 AND 6-5 SO THAT VIOLATIONS OF 
SAID SECTIONS APPLY TO CERTAIN ANIMALS WITHIN THE CITY 
LIMITS REGARDLESS OF WHERE THE ANIMAL IS KEPT. 

 
Date:  January 5, 2021 
 
Submitted: Nick Woodman, City Attorney 

 
Background 
 
While reviewing the City’s animal regulation code, staff discovered a potential loophole 
concerning Sections 6-4 and 6-5 of the City Code. Section 6-4 provides the City’s animal 
at large regulations and section 6-5 contains the City’s rabies vaccination requirement for 
certain animals.  
 
Both of these sections, as currently written only apply when the animal is kept within the 
corporate limits of the City. This poses an enforcement issue when County residents allow 
their animals to run at large within the City limits.  
 
Analysis 
 
The proposed modifications to sections 6-4 and 6-5 as set forth in the above referenced 
Council Bill will allow the City to utilize an important tool to protect the health, safety, and 
welfare of the residents of the City. The proposed modifications would change the code 
sections’ focus from where the animal is kept or domiciled to the animal’s presence within 
the corporate limits of the City. Meaning, if an animal is present within the City without a 
rabies vaccination, then that is the violation, regardless of whether the animal is kept or 
domiciled within the City.    
 
Additionally, staff is proposing to add the language “or other animal” to section 6-4. This 
will provide the Police Department with an additional enforcement tool should an animal 
not specifically referenced in the section is at large within the City. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends approval of the above referenced Council Bill.  
 
Attachments: 
 
 Attachment 1 – Clean version of the proposed amendments.  



 

Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 
Sec. 6-4. Animals at large. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to allow a dog, chicken, miniature pig, or other 
animal to run at large within the corporate limits of the city. Any dog, miniature pig, or 
other animal shall be deemed to be at large when it is off the property of its owner and 
not physically restrained by a competent person. All owners of dogs, miniature pigs, or 
other animals shall confine such animals to an enclosed area on their property, or confine 
their dog, miniature pig, or other animal to a leash, or a chain in such a manner as to at 
all times have full control of the animal. Any chicken shall be deemed to be at large when 
it is not confined to the enclosed area of the owner's property as described in section 6-
13. For purposes of this section, miniature pig shall have the same meaning as such term 
is used in section 6-13 of the city code. 
 
Sec. 6-5. Vaccination of animals. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to allow any dogs, cats, and other household 
pets for which a rabies vaccination is available to permit such animal to be present within 
the corporate limits of the city without shall have a current vaccination for rabies. All dogs, 
cats and other applicable household pets shall wear a vaccination tag and shall present 
documentation that the proper inoculation has been given by a state-licensed 
veterinarian, when obtaining a City animal license tag as required by section 6-37 of the 
City Code. Miniature pigs, as such term is defined in section 6-13 of the city code, shall 
be required to have a current rabies vaccination even though a vaccine may not be 
specifically formulated for swine. 

 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022- 011    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 1 of 3 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA AMENDING CHAPTER 1 
6 OF THE NIXA CITY CODE BY MODIFYING SECTIONS 6-4 AND 6-5 SO THAT 2 

VIOLATIONS OF SAID SECTIONS APPLY TO CERTAIN ANIMALS WITHIN THE 3 
CITY LIMITS REGARDLESS OF WHERE THE ANIMAL IS KEPT. 4 

_________________________ 5 
 6 
 WHEREAS Section 6-4 of the City Code contains the City’s regulations related to 7 

animals running at large in the City; and 8 
 9 
 WHEREAS Section 6-5 of the City Code contains the City’s regulations related to 10 
the rabies vaccination status of certain animals; and 11 
 12 

 WHEREAS both of these sections, as currently written, only apply to animals which 13 

are kept within the corporate limits of the City; and 14 

 15 
 WHEREAS the City Council desires to modify these provisions so that they apply 16 

to any animal present within the corporate limits of the City regardless of whether such 17 
animal is kept, or whether the owner lives, in the corporate limits of the City. 18 

 19 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 20 

NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 21 

 22 
SECTION 1: Chapter 6, Article I, section 6-4 of the Nixa City Code is hereby 23 

amended by repealing said section in its entirety and adopting in lieu thereof a new 24 
section 6-4, which said section shall read as follows: 25 

 26 
(Note: Language to be added is indicated by being underlined. Language to be removed 27 

is indicated by being stricken.) 28 
 29 
Sec. 6-4. Animals at large. 30 

 31 
It shall be unlawful for any person within the corporate limits of the city to allow a 32 

dog, chicken, miniature pig, or other animal pup to run at large within the corporate limits 33 
of the city. Any dog, miniature pig, or other animal pup shall be deemed to be at large 34 
when it he is off the property of its his owner and not physically restrained by a competent 35 
person. All owners of dogs, miniature pigs, or other animals pups shall confine such 36 

animals to an enclosed area on their property, or confine their dog, miniature pig, or other 37 
animal pup to a leash, or a chain in such a manner as to at all times have full control of 38 

the animal dog, miniature pig, or pup. Any chicken shall be deemed to be at large when 39 
it is not confined to the enclosed area of the owner's property as described in section 6-40 
13. For purposes of this section, miniature pig shall have the same meaning as such term 41 
is used in section 6-13 of the city code.  42 
 43 

SECTION 2: Chapter 6, Article I, section 6-5 of the Nixa City Code is hereby 44 
amended by repealing said section in its entirety and adopting in lieu thereof a new 45 
section 6-5, which said section shall read as follows: 46 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022- 011    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 2 of 3 

 47 
(Note: Language to be added is indicated by being underlined. Language to be removed 48 

is indicated by being stricken.) 49 
 50 
Sec. 6-5. Vaccination of animals. 51 
 52 

It shall be unlawful for any person to allow any All dogs, cats, and other household 53 

pets for which a rabies vaccination is available to permit such animal to be present within 54 
the corporate limits of the city without shall have a current vaccination for rabies, if kept 55 
within the corporate city limits. All dogs, cats and other applicable household pets shall 56 
wear a vaccination tag and shall present documentation that the proper inoculation has 57 
been given by a state-licensed veterinarian, when obtaining a City animal license tag as 58 

required by section 6-37 of the city code the license tag is purchased. Miniature pigs, as 59 

such term is defined in section 6-13 of the city code, shall be required to have a current 60 

rabies vaccination even though a vaccine may not be specifically formulated for swine.  61 
 62 

SECTION 3: The City Attorney, when codifying the provisions of this Ordinance, is 63 
authorized to provide for different section numbers, subsection numbers, and different 64 

internal citation references than those provided herein when such section numbers, 65 
subsection numbers, or internal citation references are in error or are contrary to the intent 66 
of this Ordinance. 67 

 68 
SECTION 4: Savings Clause. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to 69 

affect any suit or proceeding now pending in any court or any rights acquired, or liability 70 
incurred nor any cause or causes of action occurred or existing, under any act or 71 

ordinance repealed hereby. 72 
 73 

SECTION 5: Severability Clause. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or 74 
phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect 75 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The Council hereby declares that 76 

it would have adopted the Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, or 77 
phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 78 

sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared invalid. 79 
 80 
SECTION 6: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 81 

passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 82 

of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter.  83 
 84 

 85 
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signatures follow on next page.] 86 

 87 
 88 
 89 

 90 
 91 
 92 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022- 011    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 3 of 3 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS _______ DAY OF _____________2022. 93 
 94 

 95 
ATTEST: 96 
 97 
________________________    __________________________ 98 
CITY CLERK       PRESIDING OFFICER 99 

 100 
 101 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR. 102 
 103 
 104 

ATTEST: 105 

         106 

________________________    __________________________  107 
CITY CLERK       MAYOR 108 

 109 
 110 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:    __________________________ 111 
        DATE OF APPROVAL 112 
________________________ 113 

CITY ATTORNEY          114 



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Issue: AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA 

APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF THE RIVERTON PARK 
SUBDIVISION GENERALLY LOCATED ALONG THE EAST 1400 
BLOCK OF NORTH ROAD AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN CITY 
OFFICIALS TO TAKE CERTAIN ACTIONS UPON THE FILING OF A 
FINAL PLAT 

 
Date:   January 10, 2022 
 
Submitted By: Garrett Tyson, Director of Planning and Development 
 
 
 
Background 
 
The Riverton Park subdivision is a R-1 single-family residential subdivision. The subject property was 
annexed into the Nixa City Limits in 2006 and the existing zoning arrangement was established at 
that time. Also in 2006, a preliminary plat was approved for the residential portion of the property, 
known as Stinerock Hill. The property is undeveloped. Property owner, Steve Eoff is currently 
extending public utilities to the site of Riverton Park to satisfy an agreement between him and the 
new property owners before finalizing the sale of the property. Shaffer & Hines has submitted a 
preliminary plat, on behalf of the new owners, illustrating the proposed arrangement of the lots 
and the public infrastructure required to serve them. 
 
Preliminary plats are a means to provide subdivision developers with an initial approval concerning 
compliance of the planned arrangement with the City’s zoning, subdivision, and other pertinent 
regulations prior to engaging the more expensive actions of detailed engineering and 
construction. 
 
Analysis 
 
The Riverton Park subdivision proposes to create 232 buildable single-family residential lots that 
are all planned to be served by public streets, municipal water, municipal sanitary sewer, and 
municipal electric services. Additionally, the subdivision will create 4 common area lots that will be 
owned and maintained by an association of property owners within the subdivision. Off-site 
transportation improvements will be made based off the recommended improvements from a 
traffic impact study performed by CJW and dated July 24, 2019. The required improvement is an 
eastbound left turn lane on North Street at the entrance to Riverton Park. The speed limit will also 
be reduced on North Street from 45 MPH to 35 MPH to improve sight distance safety at the 
entrance to Riverton Park. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff has reviewed the preliminary plat and has determined the document to be in substantial 
conformance with the applicable regulations of the Nixa City Code concerning major subdivisions 
within the R-1 zoning districts. 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2021- 121              ORDINANCE NO. 

Page 1 of 3 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA APPROVING THE 1 
PRELIMINARY PLAT OF THE RIVERTON PARK SUBDIVISION GENERALLY 2 

LOCATED ALONG THE EAST 1400 BLOCK OF NORTH ROAD AND AUTHORIZING 3 
CERTAIN CITY OFFICIALS TO TAKE CERTAIN ACTIONS UPON THE FILING OF 4 

 A FINAL PLAT.5 
_________________________ 6 

 7 

 WHEREAS an original Preliminary Plat of the Riverton Park Subdivision dated 8 
November 8, 2021, is on file with the City’s Department of Planning and Development 9 
(“Preliminary Plat”); and 10 
 11 
 WHEREAS the Department of Planning and Development has issued a staff report 12 

finding the Preliminary Plat to be in substantial compliance with the requirement of the 13 

Nixa City Code; and 14 

 15 
WHEREAS the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the Preliminary Plat 16 

at their meeting on December 6, 2021; and 17 
 18 

 WHEREAS the Commission, after considering the Preliminary Plat, staff’s 19 
recommendation regarding the Application, and after holding a public hearing on the 20 
Application, issued a recommendation of approval of the Preliminary Plat; and 21 

 22 
 WHEREAS the City Council, now having considered the Preliminary Plat, staff’s 23 

recommendation regarding the Application, and after providing an opportunity for public 24 
comment on the Preliminary Plat, now desires to approve the Preliminary Plat; and 25 

 26 
WHEREAS the City Council desires to authorize the Director of Planning and 27 

Development and City Clerk to take certain actions consistent with this Ordinance. 28 
 29 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 30 

NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 31 
 32 

SECTION 1: City Council hereby approves the Preliminary Plat of the Riverton 33 
Park Subdivision which is generally located along the East 1400 Block of North Road, as 34 
approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission. The original preliminary plat of the 35 
Riverton Park Subdivision is on file in the Department of Planning and Development, a 36 

reduced version of which is attached hereto for general reference as “Council Bill Exhibit 37 
A.” All of “Council Bill Exhibit A” including any referenced attachments, is hereby 38 

incorporated herein by this reference. 39 
 40 

SECTION 2: The Director of Planning and Development, on behalf of the City of 41 
Nixa, is hereby authorized to accept the land, easements, and improvements dedicated 42 
to the City, as shown on the Preliminary Plat of the Riverton Park Subdivision, upon: (1) 43 
the applicant filing and recording a final plat which is in accordance with this Ordinance, 44 
including any conditions attached to and described in “Council Bill Exhibit A,” and the 45 
Subdivision Regulations of the City and said final plat shall substantially conform to the 46 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2021- 121              ORDINANCE NO. 

Page 2 of 3 

Preliminary Plat, and (2) upon the Director of Public Works certifying to the Director of 47 
Planning and Development that the public improvements have been made in accordance 48 

with the City standards and specifications. Said public improvements shall not be 49 
accepted until the occurrence of the above written conditions. 50 

 51 
SECTION 3: The final plat shall not be recorded until: (1) the public improvements 52 

relating to the Preliminary Plat have been constructed according to the specifications of 53 

the City of Nixa, Missouri, and are approved by the Director of Public Works, and all 54 
engineering fees, permit fees, licenses, and other fees occasioned by or in connection 55 
with the construction of said improvements have been paid to the City; or (2) in lieu of 56 
construction of the improvements, that the Developer has filed with the Planning and 57 
Development Director, according to the terms of the Subdivision Regulations of the City, 58 

the prescribed financial assurances in a form acceptable to the City to ensure the 59 

construction of the improvements and the payment to the City of all engineering fees, 60 

permit fees, licenses, and other fees occasioned by, or which will be occasioned by, the 61 
construction of the improvements. 62 

 63 
SECTION 4: The temporary emergency access road that connects Cheyenne 64 

Road to the proposed public street in the Riverton Park subdivision between Lots 13 and 65 
14 as shown on “Council Exhibit A” shall be composed of asphalt pavement or some other 66 
alternative surface material that is proven capable of supporting a vehicle weighing 67 

60,000 pounds and provides for all-weather access according to the requirements of Nixa 68 
City Code Section 115-136. Such temporary access road shall also be contained within 69 

an emergency access easement dedicated to the City of Nixa and in a form acceptable 70 
to the City Attorney and the Director of Public Works. 71 

 72 
SECTION 5: Upon compliance with all the requirement of this Ordinance, including 73 

any conditions described in “Council Exhibit A”, the City Clerk is hereby authorized to 74 
endorse the City Council’s approval upon the final plat pursuant to Section 445.030 75 
RSMo., and such endorsement shall constitute the acceptance of the Public 76 

Improvements contained therein. 77 
 78 

SECTION 6: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 79 
passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 80 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter. 81 
 82 

 83 
 84 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signatures follow on next page.] 85 
 86 
 87 
 88 
 89 

 90 
 91 
 92 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2021- 121              ORDINANCE NO. 

Page 3 of 3 

 93 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS 10TH DAY OF JANUARY 2022. 94 

 95 
 96 
ATTEST: 97 
 98 
________________________    __________________________ 99 

CITY CLERK       PRESIDING OFFICER 100 
 101 
 102 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS _________ DAY OF ________________ 2022. 103 
 104 

 105 

ATTEST: 106 

         107 
________________________    __________________________  108 

CITY CLERK       MAYOR 109 
 110 

 111 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 112 
 113 

_______________________ 114 
CITY ATTORNEY          115 



nwoodman
Text Box
COUNCIL BILL EXHIBIT A





 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Issue: A RESOLUTION OF THE NIXA CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE 

REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE BEAUTIFICATION 
PROJECT LOCATED AT 107 SOUTH MAIN STREET WITHIN AN EXTENDED 
TIME PERIOD 

 
Date:   January 10, 2022 
 
Submitted By: Garrett Tyson, Director of Planning and Development 
 
 
 
Background 
 
Resolution 2021-012 authorized the issuance of a Nixa Beautification Façade Grant for façade 
improvements planned for the building located at 107 S Main St.  According to the program 
guidelines approved by the City Council, reimbursement must be sought within six months of the 
approval of the grant.  In this case, the deadline for seeking reimbursement was July 11, 2021. 
 
In December of 2021, the applicant contacted the City’s Planning and Development Department to 
request the reimbursement of funds and, at that time, was notified that the authority had expired 
and a reimbursement could not be issued. 
 
The applicant then requested an extension of the authority of the grant due to difficulties 
obtaining materials.  This request was presented to the Planning and Development Department in 
writing on December 15, 2021. 
 
Analysis 
 
The approved program guidelines provide for the possibility of extensions as follows: 
 

Renovation/rehabilitation work must be completed within six (6) months of 
approval.  Depending on the scope of a project, extensions may be requested 

on a case-by-case basis. 

 
There is plenty of evidence that, generally, difficulties obtaining materials has contributed to 
significant delays for development projects.   
 
Concerning the improvements performed for this grant opportunity, they are certainly well suited to 
the programs goals and objectives. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the authorization of the extension and reimbursement of funds. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-011 

Page 1 of 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA CONTINUING THE 1 
AUTHORIZATION OF THE BEAUTIFICATION FAÇADE GRANT ISSUED BY 2 
RESOLUTION 2021-012. 3 

_________________________ 4 
 5 

WHEREAS section 23-1 of the Nixa City Code establishes a Nixa Beautification 6 
Façade Grant Program (“Program”) in which certain eligible improvements may be 7 
reimbursed up to $7,500 by the City; and 8 

 9 
WHEREAS the City Council adopted Resolution 2021-012 on January 11, 2021, 10 

and said Resolution was approved by the Mayor on that same day; and 11 
 12 
WHEREAS said Resolution authorized the issuance of a Beautification Façade 13 

Grant for proposed improvements at 107 South Main Street; and 14 
 15 
WHEREAS the Council adopted guidelines for the Program required that 16 

improvement to 107 South Main Street were to be completed by July 11, 2021; and 17 
 18 
WHEREAS the guidelines for the Program also allow for the granting of extensions 19 

of the deadline; and 20 
 21 
WHEREAS the applicant has completed the improvements but said improvements 22 

were completed after July 11, 2021; and 23 
 24 
WHEREAS the City Council desires to authorize the granting of the Beautification 25 

Façade Grant for the improvements at 107 South Main Street by granting an extension 26 
of the deadline as authorized in the guidelines for the program.  27 

 28 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 29 

NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 30 
 31 

SECTION 1: City Council hereby authorizes the City Administrator, or designee, 32 
to continue to issue a Nixa Beautification Façade Grant, which was previously authorized 33 
via Resolution 2021-012. The terms and conditions of Resolution 2021-012 shall apply to 34 
the extension granted by this Resolution, except that the requirement to complete the 35 
improvements by July 11, 2021, shall no longer be of effect. Said improvements shall now 36 
be completed on or by January 31, 2022. 37 

 38 
SECTION 2: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 39 

passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 40 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter. 41 

 42 
 43 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signatures follow on next page.] 44 
 45 
 46 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-011 

Page 2 of 2 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS 10th DAY OF JANUARY 2022. 47 
 48 
 49 
ATTEST: 50 
 51 
________________________    __________________________ 52 
CITY CLERK       PRESIDING OFFICER 53 
 54 
 55 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR. 56 
 57 
 58 
ATTEST: 59 
         60 
________________________    __________________________  61 
CITY CLERK       MAYOR 62 
 63 
 64 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    __________________________ 65 
        DATE OF APPROVAL 66 
________________________ 67 
CITY ATTORNEY          68 



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Issue: A RESOLUTION OF THE NIXA CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A COOPERATIVE INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION OF IMAGERY FROM PICTOMETRY 
INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION 

 
Date:   January 10, 2022 
 
Submitted By: Garrett Tyson, Director of Planning and Development 
 
 
 
Background 
 
On an every-other-year basis, communities within Greene and Christian County cooperatively 
procure orthophotography for use in the various public Geographic Information Systems (GIS).  The 
next scheduled orthophotography flight is in Spring of 2022.  Nixa’s cost to participate in this cycle 
is $10,461.40. 
 
Analysis 
 
The orthophotography acquired through this cooperative purchase agreement provides Nixa with 
affordable access to high resolution imagery for use in our GIS.  This imagery is a vitally important 
analytical tool that supports decision making to multiple departments of the City.  The regular 
updating of imagery also facilitates a helpful historical record of visual changes to the City’s 
landscape. 
 
The cost share amount for this purchase is favorable to Nixa and adequate funds have been 
budgeted for this purpose. 
 
The photography product will likely be delivered in the 3rd quarter of 2022. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the approval of this resolution. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-012 

Page 1 of 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA AUTHORIZING THE CITY 1 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, 2 
MISSOURI TO SHARE IN THE COSTS OF IMAGERY PURCHASED FROM 3 
PICTOMETRY INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION. 4 

_________________________ 5 
 6 

WHEREAS the City of Springfield, Missouri (“Springfield”) has approached the City 7 
with a contract that would allow the City and Springfield to share in the cost of acquiring 8 
images from Pictometry International Corporation; and 9 

 10 
WHEREAS the images purchases are utilized by the City as part of its Geographic 11 

Information Systems; and 12 
 13 
WHEREAS the City Council desires to authorize the execution of the document 14 

attached hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A.”   15 
 16 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 17 

NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 18 
 19 

SECTION 1: The City Administrator, or designee, is hereby authorized to enter 20 
into the “Cooperative Intergovernmental Agreement For Acquisition of Imagery From 21 
Pictometry International Corporation” (“Contract”) attached hereto, and incorporated 22 
herein by this reference, as “Resolution Exhibit A.” Said Contract shall be in substantially 23 
similar form as the document attached hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A.” The City 24 
Administrator and the officers of the City are hereby authorized to do all things necessary 25 
or convenient to carry out the terms and intent of this Resolution. 26 

 27 
SECTION 2: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 28 

passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 29 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter. 30 
 31 
 32 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signatures follow on next page.] 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 

 46 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-012 

Page 2 of 2 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS 10th DAY OF JANUARY 2022. 47 
 48 
 49 
ATTEST: 50 
 51 
________________________    __________________________ 52 
CITY CLERK       PRESIDING OFFICER 53 
 54 
 55 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR. 56 
 57 
 58 
ATTEST: 59 
         60 
________________________    __________________________  61 
CITY CLERK       MAYOR 62 
 63 
 64 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    __________________________ 65 
        DATE OF APPROVAL 66 
________________________ 67 
CITY ATTORNEY          68 



1  

COOPERATIVE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR ACQUISITION OF IMAGERY 

FROM PICTOMETRY 
INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this     __ day of _____________, 202_ 

by and between the City of Springfield, Missouri, hereinafter referred to as “City”, and the City of Nixa, 
Missouri, hereinafter referred to as “Agency.” 

 
WHEREAS, Section 70.220 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri provides that municipalities, 

counties, and other persons may contract and cooperate with each other in connection with the 
provision of a common service; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of City and Agency collectively to receive the 

benefits of a more accurate Geographical Information System by acquiring updated aerial imagery; and 
 

WHEREAS, City and Agency desire to cooperate to acquire aerial imagery covering Greene and 
Christian Counties from Pictometry International Corporation (“Pictometry”); and 

 
WHEREAS, at the request of and on behalf of Agency, City has agreed to the terms and conditions 

set forth herein, and has agreed to arrange for the delivery of aerial imagery from Pictometry to Agency; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Agency has agreed, pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein, to accept 

said imagery and to reimburse City for Agency’s share of total costs for the imagery. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS HEREIN CONTAINED, CITY 
AND AGENCY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. On behalf of Agency, City agrees to be the lead in purchasing approximately 49 tiles of aerial 

imagery in 2022, 2024, and 2026 pursuant to a contract between City and Pictometry 
(“Contract”), said Contract to substantially conform to the draft attached as “Exhibit A” and 
incorporated by this reference, provided that the Springfield City Council lawfully 
appropriates funds for the purchase of such aerial imagery.  By signing this Agreement, 
Agency acknowledges and agrees to follow all of Pictometry’ s terms of use in the Contract in 
consideration of, and prior to, receiving and using the aerial imagery. 
 

2. In consideration for City taking the lead, Agency agrees to reimburse City for Agency’s share 
of the total cost of said aerial imagery in 2022, 2024, and 2026, as set forth in the cost 
sharing document attached as “Exhibit B” and incorporated by this reference, at or before 
the time of final delivery of the imagery from Pictometry to City, provided such funds are 
lawfully appropriated by Agency’s governing body.  Agency’s cost is estimated to be 
$10,461.40. City will invoice Agency for payment of its share, and Agency agrees to pay City 
within 45 days of receipt of invoice. 

 
 

nwoodman
Text Box
RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



2  

3. Upon final payment from Agency, the Pictometry License shall be held jointly by City, 
Agency, and other entities who enter into a similar Cooperative Agreement with City for 
acquisition of imagery from Pictometry and make final payment of their share of the total 
cost of the aerial imagery (“Other Entities”). 

 
4. In consideration of the requested Pictometry aerial imagery and monies received for same, and 

to the extent allowed by law, both Agency and City hereby release and hold harmless the other, 
their Boards, Councils, agents, officers, employees, successors and assigns with respect to any 
and all injury, death, loss or damage to person or property, whether caused by negligence or 
otherwise, in any way related to use of the Pictometry imagery. Nothing contained herein shall 
be considered a waiver of the defenses by either party of sovereign immunity, official immunity, 
or the public duty doctrine. 

 
5. Agency, City, and Other Entities shall have co-ownership of aerial imagery received from 

Pictometry as outlined in the Contract and any amendments thereto. 
 

6. Agency and City agree this Agreement and every question arising hereunder shall be construed 
or determined according to the laws of the State of Missouri. Should any part of this 
Agreement be litigated, venue shall be proper only in the Circuit Court of Greene County, 
Missouri. 

 
SO AGREED AS OF THE DAY AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN. 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, MISSOURI AGENCY 

BY:    
Assistant City Manager or Delegate 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

BY:    
City Attorney or Delegate 

BY:    
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

BY:    
Agency Attorney 

ATTEST: 

BY:    
Agency Clerk 



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Issue: Vermont Systems Hosting and Card Processing 
 

Date:   January 4, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Matt Crouse, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
 
 

Background 

 
Vermont Systems is the company that provides the registration software (Rec Trac) that the parks 
department uses for all programs, facility rentals, POS sales, memberships, etc.  Currently, this program 
is an internet-based program hosted on the city server.  We also utilize a third-party vendor ETS for all 
credit card processing which has and does cause issues in communication from time to time.  
 

Analysis 

 
This program requires continued updates to ensure the most up to date securities for card processing 
and data protection.  This process takes several minutes several times per year (nearly monthly) to 
update.  By allowing Vermont Systems to host the program the updates will be done automatically, after 
hours, and without interruption to our operations.  Vermont Systems is now also offering a card 
processing payment service that will allow the city to utilize this single source for all credit card 
transactions.  This will allow staff to utilize a single vendor for everything related to the Rec Trac 
program.  Currently, when credit card processing issues arise staff must work through/with two 
separate vendors to help determine what end of the process the error occurred and how to remedy.  By 
having the Vermont Systems card processing we will have the ability to work with a single vendor to 
rectify any issues. 
 

Recommendation 

 
This resolution is to allow the city administrator to sign the agreements for both Rec Trac hosting, and 
Vermont Systems card processing.  The funds are in the 2022 budget for both projects.  Once approved 
staff will begin working to make the necessary changes to this software and will begin working to end 
our services with ETS for card processing. 
 
Thank you for your consideration and I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Matt Crouse 
Director, Parks and Recreation 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-013 

Page 1 of 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA AUTHORIZING THE CITY 1 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE CERTAIN CONTRACT DOCUMENTS WITH 2 
VERMONT SYSTEMS FOR REC TRAC HOSTING AND CARD PROCESSING 3 
SERVICES. 4 

_________________________ 5 
 6 

WHEREAS the City’s Parks and Recreation Department currently utilizes Rec Trac 7 
for certain programs; and 8 

 9 
WHEREAS the City Council desires to the execution of the documents attached 10 

hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A,” to allow Vermont Systems to host the City’s Rec Trac 11 
program and to utilize their card processing services. 12 
 13 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 14 
NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 15 
 16 

SECTION 1: The City Administrator, or designee, is hereby authorized to enter 17 
into a contract with Vermont Systems. Said Contract shall be in substantially similar form 18 
as the documents attached hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A,” which are attached hereto 19 
and incorporated herein by this reference. The City Administrator and the officers of the 20 
City are hereby authorized to do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the terms 21 
and intent of this Resolution. 22 

 23 
SECTION 2: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 24 

passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 25 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter. 26 
 27 
 28 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signatures follow on next page.] 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-013 

Page 2 of 2 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS 10th DAY OF JANUARY 2022. 47 
 48 
 49 
ATTEST: 50 
 51 
________________________    __________________________ 52 
CITY CLERK       PRESIDING OFFICER 53 
 54 
 55 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR. 56 
 57 
 58 
ATTEST: 59 
         60 
________________________    __________________________  61 
CITY CLERK       MAYOR 62 
 63 
 64 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    __________________________ 65 
        DATE OF APPROVAL 66 
________________________ 67 
CITY ATTORNEY          68 



nwoodman
Text Box
RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A





City of Nixa Parks and Recreation City of Nixa Parks and Recreation

P.O. Box 395 Nixa, Missouri 65714

44-6005734 www.nixaparks.com 417.725.5486

Matt Crouse 417.725.5486 mcrouse@nixa.com

$47.00 $5,000.00$750,000.00 $216,000.00 $47.00 $5,000.00

$1,000,000.00

Nixa Community and Aquatic Center 701 N. Taylor Way, Nixa, Missouri, 65714 417.725.5486

City of Nixa- Parks and Recreation 1 $750,000.00



Southern Bank City of Nixa 281573259 590024949

















 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

Page 1 of 1 

 
Issue:  Effective Date of Ordinance 2211 and the Repeal of the City’s Current 

State of Emergency.  
 
Date:  January 4, 2022 
 
Submitted: Nick Woodman, City Attorney 

 
On July 26, 2021, Mayor Steele signed Ordinance 2211 into law. This Ordinance repealed 
Ordinance 2110 and Ordinance 2111, which both formed the legal foundation for the 
City’s COVID-19 state of emergency and the executive actions taken by the Mayor. 
Ordinance 2211 had a delayed and conditional effective date, meaning the repeal action 
of the Ordinance would take effect later or upon the occurrence of a certain condition. 
 
Specifically, Ordinance 2211 would become effective on September 1, 2021, or upon the 
expiration of the Missouri Governor’s State of Emergency related to COVID-19 (Executive 
Order 21-09), whichever event occurs later. The Governor kept the statewide state of 
emergency in effect since the passage of Ordinance 2211. Recently, the Governor 
announced that he would let the state of emergency expire on December 31, 2021. 
 
With the Governor’s expiration of the statewide state of emergency, Ordinance 2211 has 
become effective and as a result, the City Council’s declared state of emergency in the 
City of Nixa has terminated and Ordinance 2110 and Ordinance 2111 have been 
repealed.      
 
 
 
 








